NO :N336-6-III 

IN DEPARTMENT III OF THE COURT OF APPEALS 
OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 

LINDA BAYS, APPELLANT 

vs 

ANTHONY GRABlCKL RESPONDENT 

APPEAL BRIEF OF LINDA BAYS, APPELLANT 

I.

IDENTITY OF APPELLANT 

FILED 
JUN 2 9 2015 
COURT OF APPEALS 

DIVISION Ill 
STATE OF WASHINGTON a, ____ _ 

The Appellant is Linda Bays, who objected pre-hearing to any and all judgments 

and/or decisions to be made in the Stevens County Court (one of the Tri-county -- i.e. 

Stevens/Ferry/Pend Orielle -- courts) by Hon David Frazier, Superior Court Judge from 

Whitman County. He had been assigned by the Court Administrator of Spokane County 

to hear a case in that Stevens county state court against her brought by Anthony 

Grabicki, successor to Jose Esposito as Bankruptcy Trustee. The Appellant's main 

objection is to the jurisdiction of Judge Frazier to make any determinations whatever in 

Stevens County unless properly acting as a judge pro tempore. He would not even ask 

for written consent of the Stevens County judges to act in that manner and claimed to be 

a ''visiting" rather than a "pro-tempore" judge in their county. "Visiting Judges" are still 

judges "Pro Tempore" when they are NOT elected by the citizens of that county. 



II. 

ISSUE OF THE CASE 

If a "Visiting Judge" who is never going to have to face the voters of a county 

anything more than a judge "Pro-Tempore" in that county if proper Constitutional 

procedure is not followed, and is the manner of his designation as a "Visiting 

Judge" for that other county merely an "administrative act" that can be delegated 

when the Constitution makes such designation the judicial duty of the Chief 

Justice? 

III. 

STATEMENT OF CASE 

Unlike judges appointed for Federal Court, judges in the State of Washington are 

to be elected and responsible to those they serve. The Washington State Constitution is 

clear about that in its provisions for the election of judges of the various counties by the 

citizens in those very same counties in which they preside. The reasoning was that 

judges who would need re-election by persons for whom they made decisions would be 

careful how those decisions were made. 

But certain counties in the far northwest corner of the state - Ferry. Stevens and 

Pend Orielle seemed at the time of adoption of the Constitution to have too few people 

to justify the cost of a judge for each county. Instead, the Constitution set up the way 

two judges were to serve the three counties. This insufficiency of judges, over time, 

would require the assistance of additional judges to handle cases in the Tri-County area 

when the two were unable to do so. The Constitution set up a manner for the judges of a 



county (or the governor) to obtain "pro-tempore'' judges for service on a time to time 

basis. 

In this case Judge Frazier actually took over from Hon. John F. Shrohmaier, 

Superior Court Judge of Lincoln County, who also had been originally assigned wrongly 

and contrary to Constitution and Statute. Both, therefore, lacked jurisdiction to proceed 

on a Tri-County Case. Because Judge Shrohmaier stepped down, this appeal is only as 

to all decisions of Judge Frazier who continued to act without request or consent of the 

local judges or without taking the required oath of judge pro tempore and without 

answering Appellant's challenge to jurisdiction or giving any authority where he had the 

right to act in Stevens County on the basis of a so called "order of pre-assignment" made 

by the Spokane Court Administrator. In the face of specific objection by Appellant as to 

his manner of appointment without proper Constitutional or statutory procedure Judge 

Frazier was completely lacking in legal jurisdiction which would make any rulings by 

him VOID (not merely voidable). 

The court administrator can carry out administrative functions but not duties 

given to particular judges by the Constitutional. Court administrators cannot 

constitutionally carry out specific designated juridical functions. The local rules of Pend 

Oreille County, Stevens County and the State Court Rules, the Constitution of the State 

of Washington and the Statutes all hold that assignment of a visiting judge is a judicial 

"duty." 

In prior cases involving the Appellant, this same Court of Appeals ducked the 

specific issue of lack of jurisdiction as to third parties who actually owned the real estate, 

and this court also ducked the fact that the court administrator did not have any authority 
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to make a Pre-assignment of the specific judge without request from the judges of the 

Tri-county court. Where does the court administrator for Spokane County claim to get 

any juridical authority to assign "visiting" judges on some rotation basis for service in 

the Tri-county area? Improper delegation of such "visiting" judges that does not follow 

the law does not give such "visiting" judges jurisdiction in another county where they 

were never elected and never will have to be re-elected. 

IV. 

DISCUSSION OF THE LAW 

The Washington Constitution provides that the Presiding Judge can assign a 

"visiting judge" to help in another county upon the request of the judges in that county. 

Article IV, Sections 5 and 7 of the Constitution of the State of Washington. State 

Court Administrator may perhaps make recommendations to the Chief Justice who the 

Constitution says is entitled to assign a visiting judge, but not actually make those 

assignments. That assignment is not a merely administrative act but an official judicial 

duty assigned to the judge by the Constitution. 

In the Tri-County area ''visiting" judges have neither been assigned by the Chief 

Justice nor requested by the governor or the local judges. They have routinely been sent 

there on a rotation schedule from Spokane superior court, under "local rules" for 

Spokane County courts only. These judges claim they are not judges pro-tempore, but 

rather "visiting judges". This is contrary to the Constitutional mandate since Section 7 

states that judges elected in other counties are judge pro tempore when acting in another 

county. AR 6(e) . They certainly are not assigned pursuant to the Constitution or the 

pertinent statutes RCW 2.08.140 and RCW 2.08.150. Article IV, Sections 5 and 7 of 
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the Constitution of the State of Washington Such a judge (whatever called "visiting" 

or "pro-tempore") should only be there after the jurisdictional and statutory requirements 

are met because they will never have to face the voters in the county elections for bad 

judgments. 

In the November 2001 elections the people of the State of Washington ratified a 

constitutional amendment to these provisions, but it did not change much. It does make 

it clear that a "visiting" judge is a "pro tempore" judge when he is temporarily acting as 

judge in some other county where he was not elected. 

Even after the constitutional amendment in 200 I, the Washington State Courts 

have been ignoring the fact our state constitution calls a visiting judge a judge "pro 

tempore". The following provisions were not abrogated: 

"The judge of any superior court may hold a Superior court in any county 
at the request of the judge of the superior court thereof, and upon the 
request of the governor it shall be his duty to do so. A case in the superior 
court may be tried by a judge, pro tempore, who must be a member of the 
bar, agreed upon in writing by the parties litigant, or their attorneys of 
record, approved of by the court and sworn to try the case; or without the 
agreement of the parties if the judge pro-tempore is a sitting judge and is 
acting as a judge pro tempore pursuant to supreme court rule. The 
Supreme Court rule must require assignments of judge pro tempore based 
on the judges experience and must provide for the right, exercisable once 
during a case. to a change of judge pro tempore. Such right shall be in 
addition to any other right provided by law, However, if a previously 
elected judge of the superior court retires leaving appending case in which 
the judge has made discretionary rulings, the judge is entitled to hear the 
pending case as a judge pro tempore without any written agreement" 

Article IV, Section 7, Washington Constitution (emphasis added) 

There is still the ordinary provision that would require the written consent or 

request of the local judges to a pro-tempore judge Additionally, RCW 2.08.180, also 

consistent to the Constitution, requires special oath for a judge pro tempore, and the 

written request from the local judges assigning an elected Superior Court Judge to act as 



a judge pro tempore in a specific case. State ex Rel Carpenter vs. Lewis County for 

the State of Washington, 131 Wash. 448, 23 Pac. 144 ( ) 

The only previous requirement omitted by passage of the amended Article 7 of 

the Constitution in 2002 allowing a judge elected in another county coming to preside as 

a "visiting" judge (although still a judge "pro tempore") is that he no longer had to get 

the signed consent of all the parties. However, each party still has the right, in addition 

to any other right, to ask once for a change to a different "visiting'' judge. 
I K'i3 

In 1'9;fJ the Washington Legislature passed a new law which specifically ''to 

provide for the holding of sessions of the superior court in any county in this state by a 

judge of the superior court of any other county, or counties, therein, and declaring an 

J8i3 
emergency. " Wash Session Laws JW3, Chapter XLllI 

That provision is still valid today, but nowhere is provision for the Spokane Court 

Administrator, without authority under the Washington State Constitution or the 

Washington Revised Code of Washington (merely based on a local Spokane rule for 

Spokane Superior Court) to enter an order of Preassignment (whatever that might be) 

giving any judge the right to jurisdiction in any of the Tri-county courts. 

t~ 
The part of Wash Sess Laws~, Chapter XLIII, that applies state in 

pertinent part: 

"Such request and direction by the governor shall be made in 
writing, and shall specffy the county in which he directs the superior judge 
to whom the same is addressed to hold such session of the superior court, 
and during the period during which he is to hold such session (Section I) 

and 

"Whenever "a like request" shall be addressed by thejudge or by 
a mqjority of judges (if there be more than one) ofthe superior court or 
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any county to the superior judge of any other county he is hereby 
empowered. " (Section 2) 

Those parts of Sections I & 2, are presently, almost word for word for 

RCW 2.08.140 & RCW 2.08.150. The word "And" between the two sections has been 

inserted by the Appellant so the court must recognize the fact that RCW 2.08.150 is a 

continuance of RCW 2.08.140 because both are codification of the same Sessions Law 

Chapter. The appellant told Judge Frazier she would agree to his jurisdiction only if he 

took the special oath, and if he first got the required written request from the local 

judges. He said he wouldn't and he didn't. 

The judges of Tri-County may request the assignment of a "visiting" judge, but 

that appointment is to be done by the Chief Justice at the suggestion of the State Court 

Administrator when needed. There is no authority in the Constitution of the State of 

Washington or in the Statutes for anyone in the State "or" County Court Administrators 

office's to be granting jurisdiction to a judge from one county to serve in another county 

without the written request and consent of the local judge or majority of judges. 

CONCLUSION 

A "visiting" judge does not get his authority to take over a Stevens County case 

from the Spokane Court Administrator, because Tri-County judges have no authority to 

assign their judicial duty to a Spokane County Court Administrator, and there would not 

be any authority to allow them to assign that duty to an elected Spokane County Judge. 

In this case Whitman County Judge Frazier was assigned to Stevens County by the 

Spokane Superior Court Administrator. The appellant objected to that. . 

When "visiting" judges are not properly assigned according to the Constitution 

and the Statutes they have no jurisdiction and their orders are VOID, not merely 



voidable. This ruling might apply only on cases in which there has been a timely 

objection made. The appellant has each time since her 2001 divorce case, DAVID 

BAYS v. LINDA BAYS, in Pend Orielle County made this objection as to lack of 

jurisdiction. Her objections have thus far been ignored They are genuine and valid. 

All the citizens of this state and of the United States are guaranteed due process 
of law and equal protection of the laws. We are a Country of laws, and those laws must 
be followed. "When any court violates the clean and unambiguous language of the 
Constitution, a fraud is perpetrated and no one is bound to obey it." State v. Sutton, 63 
Minn. 147, 65 NW 262, 30 LR.A. 630 Am. St. 459, 

''Constitutional provisions for the s~curity of person and property should be 
liberally construed. It is the duty of the courts to be watchful of constitutional rights 
against any stealthy encroachments thereon." Boyd v. U.S., 116, U.S., 635 

"Decency, security, and liberty alike demand that government officials all be 
subjected to the same rules of conduct that are commands to the citizen. In a government 
of laws, existence of the government will be imperiled if it fails to observe the law 
scrupulously. Our government is the potent, the omnipresent teacher. For good or ill, it 
teaches the whole people by its example. Crime is contagious. If the government 
becomes a lawbreaker, it breeds contempt for the law; it invites every man to become a 
law unto himself; it invites anarchy. To declare that in the administration of the law, the 
end justifies the means .... would bring terrible retribution. Against that pernicious 
doctrine this court should resolutely set its face." Justice Brandeis in Olmstead v. 
Untied States, 277 U.S. 438, 485,