I. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Mr. Grabicki is the bankruptcy trustee for the Bankruptcy 

Estate of David Bays. CP 021-055. The Bankruptcy Estate 

contains certain real property located in Stevens County, 

Washington, referred to as the "Kettle Falls Property." Id. On 

October 9, 2012, as part of his effort to sell the Kettle Falls 

Property for the benefit of the Bankruptcy Estate, Mr. Grabicki 

filed a Complaint for Ejectment of Linda Bays and others, in 

Stevens County Superior Court. CP 021 -055. 

On June 4, 2013, both The Honorable Allen C. Nielson 

and The Honorable Patrick A. Monasmith of the Stevens, Ferry 

and Pend Oreille County Superior Court rec used themselves, and 

an Order ofRecusal was issued. CP 241, 242. 

On June 30, 2014, Mr. Grabicki filed an Amended 

Complaint for Quiet Title and Ejectment against Linda Bays and 

others. CP 256-264. 



In August, 2013, visiting superior court judge the 

Honorable David Frazier of the Whitman County Superior Court 

was assigned to preside over the case. 

Ultimately, Judge Frazier issued summary judgment 

orders in favor of Mr. Grabicki, quieting title in him against 

Ms. Bays and other individuals/entities who had asserted an 

interest in the Kettle Falls Property and ordering that they be 

ejected from the property. CP 252-55, CP 277-281. 

On January 26, 2015, Ms. Bays filed a Notice of Appeal. 

The only issue raised by Ms. Bays in her appeal is whether Judge 

Frazier had "jurisdiction" to preside over this case. 

II. ARGUMENT AND AUTHORITIES 

For the reasons set forth below, Ms. Bays' arguments with 

respect to Judge Frazier's authority are not only groundless, but 

are frivolous, and the trial court's summary judgment orders 

should be affirmed. 
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A. Under the Washington State Constitution, the judge 
of any superior court may hold superior court in any 
other county at the request of the superior court 
judge(s) of the other county. 

states: 

Article 4, Section 7, of the Washington State Constitution 

The judge of any superior court may hold a superior 
court in any county at the request of the judge of the 
superior court thereof, and upon the request of the 
governor it shall be his or her duty to do so. A case 
in the superior court may be tried by a judge pro 
tempore either with the agreement of the parties if 
the judge pro tempore is a member of the bar, is 
agreed upon in writing by the parties litigant or their 
attorneys of record, and is approved by the court and 
sworn to try the case; or without the agreement of 
the parties if the judge pro tempore is a sitting 
elected judge and is acting as a judge pro tempore 
pursuant to supreme court rule. The supreme court 
rule must require assignments of judges pro 
tempore based on the judges' experience and must 
provide for the right, exercisable once during a case, 
to a change of judge pro tempore. Such right shall 
be in addition to any other right provided by law. 
However, if a previously elected judge of the 
superior court retires leaving a pending case in 
which the judge has made discretionary rulings, the 
judge is entitled to hear the pending case as a judge 
pro tempore without any written agreement. 
(Emphasis added.) 
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Significantly, Article 4, Section 7, distinguishes between 

a visiting superior court judge and a judge pro tempore. A 

visiting judge must be a superior court judge in another county. 

By contrast, any attorney may act as a judge pro tempore if 

agreed upon in writing by the parties or their attorneys of record, 

approved by the court, and sworn to try the case. In addition, no 

agreement of the parties is necessary if the judge pro tempore is 

a sitting elected judge [of any court] and is acting as a judge pro 

tempore pursuant to Supreme Court rule. 

Ms. Bays, throughout her appeal, claims a visiting superior 

court judge is the same as a judge pro tempore, and that the 

reference to "elected judge" in Article 4, Section 7, means a 

superior court judge cannot preside over a case unless he/she has 

been elected in the county where he/she presides. That is a plain 

misreading of Article 4, Section 7. 
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B. Consistent with the Washington State Constitution, 
under RCW 2.08.150, a superior court judge of one 
county may hold a session of the superior court in 
another county if requested to do so by the superior 
court of the other county. 1 

RCW 2.08.150 states: 

Whenever a like request shall be addressed by the judge, 
or by a majority of the judges (if there be more than one) 
of the superior court of any county to the superior judge of 
any other county, he or she is hereby empowered, if he or 
she deem it consistent with the state of judicial business in 
the county or counties whereof he or she is a superior 
judge (and in such case it shall be his or her duty to comply 
with such request), to hold a session of the superior court 
of the county the judge or judges whereof shall have made 
such request, at the seat of judicial business of such 
county, in such quarters as shall be provided for such 
session by the board of county commissioners, and during 
such period as shall have been specified in the request, or 
such shorter period as he or she may deem necessary by 
the state of judicial business in the county or counties 
whereof he or she is a superior judge. (Emphasis added.) 

This statute, like Article 4, Section 7, authorizes a superior 

court judge of one county to preside over a superior court case in 

1 Significantly. judges pro tempore are addressed by a separate statute: 
RCW 2.08.180. Like Article 4, Section 7, of the Washington State 
Constitution, that statute indicates that a superior court judge pro tempore 
can be: (1) a lawyer, as long as he/she is agreed to by the parties or their 
attorneys, approved by the court, and sworn to try the case; (2) or any sitting 
elected judge [of any court], pursuant to supreme court rule. 
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another county if requested to do so by the judges of the other 

courts. 

C. Court rules authorize the superior court 
administrator to act for the presiding superior court 
judge in requesting the appointment of a visiting 
judge. 

Under the local rules for Ferry, Pend Oreille and Stevens 

County, general management of the Superior Court is vested in 

the presiding judge. LAR 3. One of the duties of the Court 

Administrator, as the presiding judge's representative, is case 

assignments and trial calendar management. LAR 3( d)(2). And 

under LRGAL I 0 of Ferry, Stevens and Pend Oreille Counties, 

the Court Administrator may arrange for a visiting judge when 

both Tri County judges are unable to act. 

Spokane County local rules authorize the Superior Court 

Administrator to assist the presiding judge with administrative 

responsibilities. Subject to the general supervision of the 

presiding judge, the court administrator's duties include 
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coordinating with the state court administrator and with the 

visiting judge program. Spokane County LAR 0.2(f). 2 

In the instant case, Ms. Bays argues Judge Frazier was not 

requested to preside over the case by a Superior Court judge from 

Stevens County. While there is no evidence in the record of the 

specific request, the Washington Constitution does require that a 

request for a visiting judge be made part ofthe record before the 

visiting judge has authority to act. State v. Hawkins, 164 Wn. 

App. 705, 712, 265 P.3d 185 (2011 ). 

D. Ms. Bays' appeal is frivolous and Mr. Grabicki 
should be awarded his costs and attorney's fees. 

Under RAP l 8.9(a), the Court may order an appellant 

and/or counsel to pay terms to the respondent as a sanction for 

filing a frivolous appeal. A frivolous appeal is one which raises 

no debatable issues and is totally devoid of merit. See, Protect 

2 Ms. Bays cites LAR 6 in support of her position. But LAR 6 addresses 
only elected judges pro tempore under Washington Constitution Article 4, 
Section 7, and RCW 2.08.180. It does not address visiting superior cou11 
judges. 
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The Peninsula's Future v. City of Port Angeles, 175 Wn. App. 

201, 220, 304 P.3d 914 (2013). 

This is not the first time Ms. Bays has challenged the 

authority of a visiting Superior Court Judge. She made the same 

argument in In Re: Marriage of Bays, Erickson, 131 Wn. App. 

l 032, 2006 WL 281183 (2006), and her argument was 

summarily rejected. In light of that case, and the plain language 

of the Washington State Constitution and RCW 2.08.150 

concerning the appointment of a visiting Superior Court Judge, 

Ms. Bays' appeal is frivolous and the Court should assess terms 

under RAP l 8.9(a). 

E. Specific relief requested re: ejectment of Linda Bays, 
Angela Thunstrom, William B. Klinger, Sr., and any 
agents, squatters, tenants or other occupants of the 
property and writ of restitution. 

In October, 2002, the subject real property was awarded to 

David Bays, Linda Bays' ex-husband, in a dissolution 

proceeding. Because David Bays was in Bankruptcy when the 

Dissolution Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law were 
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issued, the bankruptcy Trustee assumed "ownership" of his 

property interest, and for years, has been attempting to sell the 

property for the benefit of the bankruptcy estate. And for years 

Linda Bays, separately and in conjunction with others, including 

her children, Kelly Case and Angela Thunstrom, have been 

tirelessly working to frustrate the Trustee in this regard. 

Ms. Bays' efforts have generally fallen into two categories: 

( 1) repeated collateral attacks on the Dissolution Findings of Fact 

and Conclusions of Law, and the repeated assertion of frivolous 

claim( s) against individuals involved in the dissolution and 

David Bays' bankruptcy, including judges, lawyers, and the 

bankruptcy trustee, (which claims have included challenges to 

the jurisdiction of judges who decide issues against her); and 

(2) the assertion of rights in the property allegedly held by others 

with whom Linda Bays is somehow related, including her son, 

Kelly Case, her daughter, Angela Thunstrom, and dubious 

entities in which Ms. Bays and her children have claimed 
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membership, such as the Linjericks Society and the Sonlight 

Pathway Society. 

Under RAP 12.2, the Appellate Court may reverse, affirm, 

or modify the decision being reviewed and "take any other action 

as the merits of the case and interest of justice may require." 

Here, in light of this case's history and Ms. Bays' obstructionist 

litigation tactics since 2002, Mr. Grabicki requests that the Court, 

in addition to affirming the trial court's summary judgment 

orders and awarding terms against Ms. Bays and/or her counsel, 

direct that the Stevens County Superior Court, within ten days of 

this Court's decision, issue a Writ of Restitution with respect to 

Parcel A and Parcel B (the Kettle Falls Property) which provides 

as follows: 

It is hereby ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND 
DECREED that the Sheriff of Stevens County, State of 
Washington be allowed to break and enter the above
described premises, located at 1698 Nichols Road, Kettle 
Falls, Washington 99141, Stevens County, Washington 
and command serve Linda Bays, individually and as a 
member of the Linjericks Society, an unincorporated 
society, as a member of the Linjericks Society, a 
corporation sole, and as a member of the Sonlight Pathway 
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Society, Angela Thunstrom, individually and as a member 
of the Linjericks Society, an unincorporated society, as a 
member of the Linjericks Society, a corporation sole, and 
as a member of the Sonlight Pathway Society, William B. 
Klinger, Sr., individually and as a member of the 
Linjericks Society, an unincorporated society, as a 
member of the Linjericks Society, a corporation sole, and 
as a member of the Sonlight Pathway Society, the 
Linjericks Society, an unincorporated society, and all its 
members and the Sonlight Pathway Society and all its 
members, and any other persons present on the property to 
leave the premises taking with them any personal property 
they wish to keep within five days (120 hours). If the 
foregoing individuals do not vacate the premises 
voluntarily within five days (120 hours), the Sheriff or 
Marshal shall remove them and any personal property left 
behind shall be deemed abandoned. If the premises are 
unoccupied this Writ of Restitution shall be served by 
securely attaching the Writ on a conspicuous place on the 
premises. 

No appeal of said Writ of Restitution shall be taken or allowed. 

III. CONCLUSION 

The Washington State Constitution and a Washington 

statute allow a superior court judge from one county to preside 

over a superior court case in another county as a "visiting judge" 

if requested to do so by the judges of the other county. The 

Superior Court Administrator acts as the designee of the county 

11 



superior court judges with respect to certain matters of court 

administration, including the assignment of visiting judges. 

Here, Judge Frazier was appointed to preside over the Stevens 

County case. Because his appointment was in full compliance 

with the Constitution, statute, and applicable court rules, Judge 

Frazier had the authority to preside over this matter and his 

summary judgment orders should be affirmed. 

Because this appeal is frivolous, Ms. Bays and/or her 

counsel should be assessed terms under RAP 12.2. 

Finally, given the history and procedural posture of this 

case and Ms. Bays' long history of obstructionist litigation 

tactics, the Court should direct the Stevens County Superior 

Court to issue the Writ of Restitution described above.